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Forfeiture of an Honour
The King has directed that the appointment of James Hay Wallace to be a Knight Companion of the New Zealand
Order of Merit, dated 6 June 2011, shall be cancelled and annulled, and that his name shall be erased from the
Register of the said Order.
Dated at Wellington this 15th day of August 2023.
RACHEL HAYWARD, Secretary and Registrar, The New Zealand Order of Merit.

NEW ZEALAND GAZETTE
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From: David Williams [DPMC] 
Sent: Monday, 21 August 2023 12:24 pm
To: Charlotte Gendall <Charlotte.Gendall@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: Andrew Campbell <Andrew.Campbell@parliament.govt.nz>; Nicola Purvis [DPMC]
<Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: Forfeiture of James Wallace's knighthood
 
[IN-CONFIDENCE]
 
Kia ora Charlotte
 
We have now published in the New Zealand Gazette a notice advising that the King has
approved the cancellation of James Wallace’s Knighthood. 
 
Kind regards
David
 
 

David Williams 
Senior Advisor (Honours)
Cabinet Office, Executive Wing, 
Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6011, New Zealand 
 
DDI: 
Email: david.williams@dpmc.govt.nz  

   
Cabinet Office is a business unit of the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet.
 
The information contained in this email message is for the attention of the intended recipient only and is not necessarily the
official view or communication of the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet. If you are not the intended recipient you
must not disclose, copy or distribute this message or the information in it. If you have received this message in error, please
destroy the email and notify the sender immediately.

 

From: Charlotte Gendall <Charlotte.Gendall@parliament.govt.nz> 
Sent: Friday, 18 August 2023 4:46 pm
To: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz>; Andrew Campbell
<Andrew.Campbell@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: David Williams [DPMC] <David.Williams@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Forfeiture of James Wallace's knighthood
 
Thank you Nicola, for this heads up.
 
 
 

s9(2)(a)

[Not in Scope]
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Charlotte Gendall | Press Secretary
Office of the Prime Minister

 

From: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz> 
Sent: Friday, 18 August 2023 4:38 PM
To: Andrew Campbell <Andrew.Campbell@parliament.govt.nz>; Charlotte Gendall
<Charlotte.Gendall@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: David Williams <David.Williams@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: Forfeiture of James Wallace's knighthood
 
[IN-CONFIDENCE]
 
Kia ora Andrew and Charlotte,
 
We’ve now had formal notification from the Palace that the King has approved the cancellation
of James Wallace’s Knighthood and we have written to Mr Wallace to advise him.  The next step
is for the publication of a Gazette notice to that effect, which will be published in the NZ Gazette
on Monday. The PM may be asked about it at his post Cabinet press conference.
 
Please keep this confidential until Monday to allow time for Mr Wallace’s lawyer to inform him
first.
 
Some key messages if the PM is asked:
 

Notification in the Gazette is the final formal step in the forfeiture process.
The PM formally advised The King to cancel and annul the appointment of James Wallace
as a Knight Companion of the New Zealand Order of Merit.
The date of 15 August set out in the Gazette notice is the date of the King’s formal
approval.
As a result, Mr Wallace is no longer entitled to use the title “Sir” or the post-nominal
“KNZM”, and has been asked to return his Warrant of appointment and honours insignia
to the Honours Unit.

There is more information about the forfeiture process on DPMC’s website: Having
honours taken away (forfeiture) | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (DPMC)

 
Hope that all makes sense, let me know if you need anything more from us.
 
Ngā mihi
Nicola
 

Nicola Purvis (she/her)
Deputy Secretary of the Cabinet (Constitutional and Honours)
Cabinet Office, Executive Wing, 
Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6011, New Zealand 
 
Direct dial: s9(2)(a)
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HONOURS: IN CONFIDENCE

pis, EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

@ CHAMBERS

“% Memo 4 August 2023

 

To

From

Prime Minister

Nicola Purvis

Subject Potential forfeiture of honours — Sir James Wallace — next steps

 

Summary

I On 2 July, you advised that you wished to initiate the process for the forfeiture of honours

for Sir James Hay Wallace. This briefing sets out Sir James’ response, and advises you as to
next steps, if, having considered that response, you decide to continue the process.

Background

2

325103vi

Sir James Wallace was appointed as a Knight Companion of the New Zealand Orderof
Merit (KNZM) at QB2011, for services to the arts. Sir James had previously been appointed

as an Officer of the New Zealand Order of Merit (ONZM) at NY2001, for services to the

arts.

On 23 March 2021 following a four-week jury trial in the High Court, Sir James was
convicted of three charges of indecent assault, and two charges of attempting to dissuade

one of the complainants from giving evidence. He waslater sentenced to two years and four
months imprisonment.

The High Court Judge noted when sentencing Sir James that he had an “inability” to accept
his offending, and considered himself to be “‘a victim of the tall poppy syndrome,”. It has

been publicly reported that the Judge also noted to Sir James that Sir James’ “sense ofself-

entitlement is repeated in the affidavit you provided for sentencing, it displays a lack of
empathy for your victims and confirms yourlack of insight into your offending.”

Between 2021 and June 2023 Sir James appealed to the Court of Appeal and subsequently

the Supreme Court on both his conviction and sentence, and a decision by the High Court
declining his application for permanent suppression of his name. On 21 March 2023,the

Supreme Court declined an application for leave to appeal his convictions and sentence, and

on 26 June 2023 declined his application for leave to appeal an orderfor the continuing
suppression of his name to lapse, which exhausted Sir James’ legal appealrights.

The Acting Clerk of the Executive Council wrote to Sir James to inform him that, as a result
of these matters, you were considering recommending to the King that his appointment as a

Knight Companion of the New Zealand Orderof Merit be cancelled. He was invited to
provide any information or submission inrelation to the matter that he considered relevant,

by Friday 4 August. A copy ofthat letter is attached as Appendix 1.
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HONOURS: IN CONFIDENCE

Sir James’ response

7 Sir James replied by letter dated 4 August 2023. A copy ofthat letter is attached as
Appendix 2.

Comment

10

11

12

13

14

15

325103vI

As you know, the Prime Minister may consider advising the Sovereign to cancel the

appointment of a person to an Order where an individual’s actions are such that, if they
continue to hold that honour, the honours system would be brought into disrepute.

Examples include (but are not limited to) situations where the holder of an honouris

sentenced to more than three monthsin prison, and:

11.1 the offence involved disloyalty to the state; or

11.2 the offence was committed by a civil servant and involved serious dereliction of
duty; or

11.3. the offence involved other disgraceful conduct such that public opinion would

considerit wrong for the offender to hold a Royal honour (bringing the honours
system into disrepute).

In addition, there is a degree of discretion in the decision to initiate the process forthe
forfeiture of honours. For example, the Prime Minister may consider forfeiture in situations

where, while there has been no conviction, an individual’s actions are such that, if they

continue to hold an honour, the honours system would be broughtinto disrepute.

HONOURS: IN CONFIDENCE 2
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Next steps

16 If you decide to proceed with forfeiture of Sir James’ honour, the next steps would be as
follows:

16.1 You make a formal submission to the King recommendinghe direct the cancellation

and annulment of Sir James’ appointment;

16.2 The King gives his formal approval;

16.3 The Secretary and Registrar writes to Sir James to advise him of the decision and to
ask him to return his insignia and warrant of appointment;

16.4 The cancellation of Sir James’ appointment is published in the New Zealand Gazette;

16.5 Ifyou wish, youroffice issues a media statement.

17 If you decide to make the formal submission to the King recommendinghe direct the

cancellation and annulment of Sir James’ appointment, we recommend you do not make any

commentto the media until the process is complete and the cancellation is published. If
asked, we recommend yousay that there is a process underway and no commentwill be
made until it is completed.

Recommendations

18 I recommendthat you:

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

Nicola Purvis

note that on 2 July 2023, you agreedin principle that the threshold for forfeiture of

Sir James Wallace’s appointment as a Knight Companion of the New Zealand Order
of Merit had been met;

note the response provided by Sir James Wallaceto a letter from the Acting

Secretary of the Executive Council in relation to this matter;

agree to recommendto the Kingthat he direct the cancellation and annulmentof the

appointment of Sir James Hay Wallace’s appointment as a Knight Companionofthe

New Zealand Orderof Merit;

/ NO / DISCUSS

if you agree to recommendthat cancellation and annulment, sign the attached

submission to the King, and the covering letter to his Principal Private Secretary.

Deputy Secretary of the Cabinet (Constitutional and Honours)

Distribution:

Rt Hon Chris Hipkins

Prime Minister (Li—{$Y

Date: § / & /2023

Andrew Kirton, Chief of Staff

325103v1 HONOURS: IN CONFIDENCE 3
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From: Honours [DPMC]
To: David Williams [DPMC]; Preity Chand [DPMC]; Griffen Ritchie [DPMC]
Subject: FW: Honours forfeiture
Date: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 4:10:48 pm
Attachments: image001.png

For action.
 

From: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 4:04 pm
To: ^Parliament: Morgan Evans <Morgan.Evans@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: ^Parliament: Shayne Misselbrook <Shayne.Misselbrook@parliament.govt.nz>; Gia Garrick
<Gia.Garrick@parliament.govt.nz>; Honours [DPMC] <Honours@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Honours forfeiture
 
[IN-CONFIDENCE]
 
Thanks for your instruction Morgan, we will prepare advice for the Prime Minister.
 
Ngā mihi
Nicola
 

 

Nicola Purvis (she/her)
Deputy Secretary of the Cabinet (Constitutional and Honours)
Cabinet Office, Executive Wing, 
Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6011, New Zealand 
 
Direct dial: 
Email: Nicola.purvis@dpmc.govt.nz 

 
The Cabinet Office is a business unit of the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet.
 
 

From: Morgan Evans <Morgan.Evans@parliament.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 3:57 pm
To: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz>
Cc: ^Parliament: Shayne Misselbrook <Shayne.Misselbrook@parliament.govt.nz>; Gia Garrick
<Gia.Garrick@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: Honours forfeiture
 
Kia ora Nicola
 
On behalf of the Acting Prime Minister, would you please initiate the forfeiture procedure in
respect of Sir James Wallace’s honours? 
 
Ngā mihi nui
Morgan
 
Morgan Evans (he/him) | Advisor

 
Office of Hon Carmel Sepuloni MP, Deputy Prime Minister, Minister for Social Development and Employment,
Minister for Arts, Culture and Heritage and Associate Minister for Foreign Affairs (Pacific Region)
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Some people who received this message don't often get email from  Learn why this is
important

From: DPMC Media [DPMC]
To: Charlotte Gendall
Cc: DPMC Media [DPMC]
Subject: FW: Sir James Wallace
Date: Monday, 17 July 2023 9:24:00 am
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

[UNCLASSIFIED]
 
Ata mārie Charlotte,
 
Hope you had a good Matariki.
 
We had the below enquiry through last week, and have prepared the below response. The
Cabinet Office approves that response, but thought it might be best to come from PMO, rather
than DPMC and suggested checking with you – would you be able to give me a steer?
 
STARTS
In June, the Acting Prime Minister initiated the process for honours forfeiture. There will be no
further comment until that process has reached its conclusion.

 
There is more information about the forfeiture process on the DPMC website: Having honours
taken away (forfeiture) | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (DPMC).
 
Ngā mihi,
Vic
 

From:  
Sent: Thursday, 13 July 2023 3:28 pm
To: DPMC Media [DPMC] <Media@dpmc.govt.nz>
Cc: 
Subject: TVNZ Breakfast - Sir James Wallace
 

Kia ora team,
 
Can you please give me an update on the process of stripping Sir James Wallace of his
knighthood?
 
https://www.1news.co.nz/2023/06/28/govt-starts-process-for-stripping-sir-james-wallace-
of-knighthood/
 
Many thanks,
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Some people who received this message don't often get email from  Learn why this is
important

From: Nicola Purvis [DPMC]
To: DPMC Media [DPMC]
Subject: RE: - Sir James Wallace
Date: Thursday, 13 July 2023 4:55:00 pm
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

This content is fine with us Vic but wonder whether it should come from PMO rather than us?
Would you check that with Charlotte Gendall?
 
Thanks
Nicola
 

From: DPMC Media [DPMC] <Media@dpmc.govt.nz> 
Sent: Thursday, 13 July 2023 3:47 pm
To: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz>
Cc: DPMC Media [DPMC] <Media@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Sir James Wallace
 
[UNCLASSIFIED]
 
Kia ora Nicola,
 
We have received the below media query. I was wondering if you had any thoughts on what
response we could provide – I have updated one which we sent through in June.
 
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
Subject:  Sir James Wallace
 

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
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From: Catherine Delore [DPMC]
To: "Gia Garrick"; Nicola Purvis [DPMC]
Cc: PMOmedia; DPMC Media [DPMC]
Subject: RE: Statement request | James Wallace
Date: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 4:11:36 pm
Attachments: image001.png

Thanks Gia
 

From: Gia Garrick <Gia.Garrick@parliament.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 3:55 pm
To: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz>
Cc: PMOmedia <PMOmedia@parliament.govt.nz>; DPMC Media [DPMC]
<Media@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Statement request | James Wallace
 
Thank you. The statement will come from the Acting Prime Minister and her office is working
through that process now.
 
Draft statement, to go this afternoon.  
 

The Acting Prime Minister has initiated the process for honours forfeiture. That process
includes affording Sir James Wallace an opportunity to respond with any comments that
he considers should be taken into account. There will be no further comment until that
process has reached its conclusion.
 
There is more information about the forfeiture process on the DPMC website: Having
honours taken away (forfeiture) | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (DPMC)

 
Cheers
Gia
 

From: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 3:43 PM
To: Gia Garrick <Gia.Garrick@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: PMOmedia <PMOmedia@parliament.govt.nz>; DPMC Media [DPMC]
<Media@dpmc.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Statement request | James Wallace
 
[UNCLASSIFIED]
 
Hi Gia
 
How about something like this:
 

the Prime Minister will be initiating the process for honours forfeiture; [PMO to confirm]
that process includes affording Sir James an opportunity to respond with any comments
that he considers should be taken into account;
if after that time the Prime Minister decides to proceed with recommending forfeiture of
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the honour, he will write to The King advising him to cancel the honour;
there will be no further updates provided until that process has reached a conclusion
there is more information about the forfeiture process on our website: Having honours
taken away (forfeiture) | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet (DPMC)

 
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
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 2:59 pm
To: Nicola Purvis [DPMC] <Nicola.Purvis@dpmc.govt.nz>
Cc: PMOmedia <PMOmedia@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Statement request | James Wallace
 
Hey Nicola – could I please seek some advice on the below? Is there a usual process for
situations like this which will now be triggered?
 
Cheers
Gia
 

From: Kieran Meredith <Kieran.Meredith@parliament.govt.nz> 
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 2:46 PM
To: Gia Garrick <Gia.Garrick@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: Mark Sleeman <Mark.Sleeman@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Statement request | James Wallace
 
Hey Gia – see below? Have told  we won’t do an on-camera (which she asked for) but will
send a written statement..
 
 

From:  
Sent: Wednesday, 28 June 2023 2:43 PM
To: Mark Sleeman <Mark.Sleeman@parliament.govt.nz>; Kieran Meredith
<Kieran.Meredith@parliament.govt.nz>
Subject: Statement request | James Wallace
 
Hi!
Can we get some lines on this issue, or get the Acting PM on camera if she’s free.

s9(2)(a)

s9(2)(a)

s9(2)(a)
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James Wallace has lost name suppression, and charged with sexual assault. What considerations
will be made regarding his Knighthood?
 
Cheers
 

      
 
Follow us: Facebook | Twitter | YouTube

 

 
 
 

 

The information contained in this email message is for the attention of the intended recipient only and is not
necessarily the official view or communication of the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet. If you are not
the intended recipient you must not disclose, copy or distribute this message or the information in it. If you have
received this message in error, please destroy the email and notify the sender immediately.
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